
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\07 22 2019  Regular Council Agenda.docx 

          
 
 
COUNCIL 
Mayor Neil Belenkie 
Councillor Rob Begg 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Neil Belenkie will call the meeting to order. 
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, July 22, 2019 
 Recommendation: 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, July 22, 2019 be approved as 

circulated. 
3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
3.1 Regular Council Meeting, July 8, 2019 
 Recommendation: 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held July 8, 2019 be 

adopted. 
4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
5. REPORTS 
5.1 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, dated July 22, 2019 regarding 

Temporary Use Permit (TUP) for Evangelical Laymen’s Church, 8 Corners Tea 
Room 
Recommendation: 
1. That the Evangelical Laymen’s Church be permitted to host bread and tea 

gatherings in July, August, and September 2019, while the Official Community 
Plan (OCP) amendments are circulated and reviewed for Public Hearing and 
Third Reading; and 

     That Council authorize staff to develop an Event Permitting procedure. 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA 

VILLAGE HALL 
July 22, 2019 

7:00 PM 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  July 22, 2019 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\07 22 2019  Regular Council Agenda.docx 

2. That the Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw 435, 2011, Amendment  
Bylaw No. 541, 2019, be read a first and second time: and  
That the OCP Bylaw 435, 2011, Amendment bylaw No. 541, 2019 be referred 
to Public Hearing on September 9, 2019; and 
That Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw  
No. 541, 2019 be circulated to Metro Vancouver, the City of Port Moody, the 
Village of Anmore, and the Tsleil-Waututh Nation pursuant to Section 475 of 
the Local Government Act.  

 
3. That staff be directed to issue formal notice that a resolution is proposed 

under Section 493 of the Local Government Act to issue Temporary Use 
Permit #2019-01 for 8 Corners Canada Inc. substantially in accordance with 
Attachment 1.   

5.2 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, verbal report regarding Water 
Servicing Agreement with Metro Vancouver  

 Recommendations: 
1. That the Village of Belcarra Water Servicing Agreement with Metro Vancouver 

Regional District (Parks) dated April 24, 2019 be rescinded.  
2. That the Village of Belcarra Water Servicing Agreement with Metro Vancouver 

Regional District (Parks) dated July 22, 2019 be approved; and  
That the Mayor and Chief Administrative Officer be authorized to sign the 
Agreement.   

5.3 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated July 22, 2019 regarding 
Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 Amendment Bylaw          
No. 540, 2019  

 Recommendations: 
1. That Council rescind “Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 

Amendment Bylaw No. 539, 2019”, which received first, second and third 
reading on June 10, 2019. 
 

2. That the “Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012  
 Amendment Bylaw No. 540, 2019” be read a first, second and third time.  

5.4 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated July 22, 2019 regarding a 
Request for a Permissive Tax Exemption for the Sasamat Outdoor Centre 

 Recommendation: 
That staff be directed to prepare a bylaw to provide a Permissive Tax Exemption 
Bylaw for the Sasamat Outdoor Centre, a non-profit organization, for a period of 
five years. 

   
 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  July 22, 2019 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\07 22 2019  Regular Council Agenda.docx 

6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES 
7. BYLAWS 
 No Items.  
8. CORRESPONDENCE/PROCLAMATIONS 

Recommendation: 
 That correspondence items 8.1 – 8.7 be received. 

ACTION ITEMS 
 No items 

 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.1 Brad West, Mayor, City of Port Coquitlam, dated July 8, 2019 regarding the City 

of Port Coquitlam 2018 Annual Report (full report available in the Village Office)  
8.2 Sav Dhaliwal, Chair, Metro Vancouver Board, dated June 21, 2019 regarding 
 Amending Metro Vancouver 2040: Shaping our Future to Reflect Accepted Regional 
 Context Statements (full report available in the Village Office) 
8.3 Port Moody Senior Secondary 2019 After Grad Committee, dated June 10, 2019 

thanking the Village of Belcarra for their donation towards the 2019 After Grad 
celebration. 

8.4 Michael Morden, Mayor, City of Maple Ridge, dated June 21, 2019 regarding the 
City of Maple Ridge 2018 Citizens Report (full report available in the Village 
Office) 

8.5 Bill Beamish, Mayor, Town of Gibsons, letter dated July 16, 2019 to Honourable 
Rob Fleming, Ministry of Education regarding Provincial Support for Libraries. 

8.6 Honourable Carole James, Minister of Finance and Deputy Premier, Province     
of BC, dated July 11, 2019 regarding Meeting with Mayors to discuss impact of 
Speculation Tax. 

8.7 Council Committee Meeting Minutes: 
a) Revenue Generation Committee Meeting Minutes – May 27, 2019 
b) Tree Committee Meeting Minutes – June 19, 2019 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 

11. RESOLUTION TO CLOSE MEETING 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
 Recommendation: 
 That the July 22, 2019 Regular Meeting be adjourned. 
 



 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\2019 07 08  Regular Council Minutes.docx 

          
 
Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting for the Village of Belcarra held July 8, 2019 at the 
Municipal Hall, 4084 Bedwell Bay Road, Belcarra, BC. 

Council in Attendance 
Mayor Neil Belenkie 
Councillor Rob Begg 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 

Staff in Attendance 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer  
Bernie Serné, Superintendent of Public Works 
Connie Esposito, Recording Secretary 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Belenkie called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. 
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, July 8, 2019 
 L. Dysart requested that Council withdraw Items 5.3 and 5.4 from the agenda. 

Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, July 8, 2019 be amended by 

withdrawing Item 5.3, Water Servicing Agreement with Metro Vancouver 
  and Item 5.4, Waterworks Bylaw No. 540, 2019, from the agenda; and 
That the agenda be approved as amended.  

CARRIED 
3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
3.1 Regular Council Meeting, June 24, 2019 
 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held June 24, 2019 be 

adopted. 
 CARRIED 

 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES 

VILLAGE HALL 
July 8, 2019 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
3.1



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  July 8, 2019 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\2019 07 08  Regular Council Minutes.docx 

4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS  
4.1 Revenue Generation Committee (RGC), Tom Kim – Chair,  
  Sharilyn Sweet – Vice-Chair, Brian Hirsch, Penny Moen and Maris Sulcs, report 

dated June 25, 2019 regarding June 2019 Interim Reports: 

Tom Kim and Sharilyn Sweet provided an overview of their report noting the 
revenue benefits that are anticipated as a result of their review. Their report 
further outlined the contemplation of densification with the opportunity of 
reduction of lot size from 0.5 acre to 0.25 acre. 
Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
Seconded by: Councillor Drake 

That the Revenue Committee Generation recommendation reports be separated 
into two motions. 

CARRIED 
Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
Seconded by: Councillor Clark 

1. RS-1 Zoning Amendment  
That the Revenue Generation Committee RS-1 Zoning Amendment Interim 
Report dated June 25, 2019 be received; and 
That the RGC Interim Report regarding RS-1 Amendments dated June 25, 2019 
be referred to staff to be included for consideration when the Official Community 
Plan is reviewed. 

CARRIED 
2. Charitable Donation Plan  
Discussion ensued relative to: 
Tom Kim provided an overview of the Committee’s report noting the potential for 
the Village to accept charitable donations. 
Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
That the Revenue Generation Committee Interim Report dated June 25, 2019 
regarding Charitable Donation Plan be received; and  
That the RGC Interim Report regarding Charitable Donations be referred to staff 
to prepare a report to Council on development of a potential plan for 
implementation of a Charitable / Fundraising Organization with financial 
implications identified.   

CARRIED 
 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  July 8, 2019 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\2019 07 08  Regular Council Minutes.docx 

5. REPORTS 
5.1 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated July 8, 2019 regarding 

the Fire Sprinkler Systems  
L. Dysart outlined her report regarding potential for fire sprinkler systems to be 
installed in all new construction and in major house renovations or additions.  
Moved by:  Councillor Begg 
Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
That Staff be requested to investigate a variation under Section 7 of the Building 
Act as it relates to fire sprinkler systems being installed in residential homes. 

CARRIED 
Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
Seconded by: Councillor Drake 
That the Fire Sprinkler Systems report dated July 8, 2019 be received for 
information. 

CARRIED 
5.2 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated July 8, 2019 regarding 

Designated Anchorage Area 
L. Dysart provided an overview of her report regarding a proposed DAA in 
Bedwell Bay which may assist with long term anchorages in Bedwell Bay, assist 
with resolving the situation with live-aboards and derelict vessels.   
Jason Krott, Port of Vancouver, was in attendance and commented the current 
map of Designated Anchorage Area in Belcarra, options that are available for 
designated anchorage areas and issues surrounding dumping of sewage. 
Jason also noted that constitutionally, a mariner cannot be prevented from 
anchoring anywhere when weather or repairs are involved. 
Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
Seconded by: Councillor Clark 

 That Council receive for information the report on a Designated Anchorage Area 
(DAA) Program for Bedwell Bay dated July 8, 2019; and  
That a Public Information Meeting be scheduled in September 2019 for public 
discussion on a Designated Anchorage Area being established in Bedwell Bay; 
and  
That the Chief Administrative Officer continue with discussions with the Port of 
Vancouver on an agreement and with the District of North Vancouver CAO 
regarding inspections and enforcement.   

CARRIED 
 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  July 8, 2019 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\2019 07 08  Regular Council Minutes.docx 

5.3 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, verbal report regarding Water 
Servicing Agreement with Metro Vancouver 

 Item 5.3 has been withdrawn from the Agenda 
5.4 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated July 8, 2019 regarding 

Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 Amendment Bylaw No. 540, 
2019  
Item 5.4 has been withdrawn from the Agenda 

6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES 
No items 

7. BYLAWS 
 No items 
8. CORRESPONDENCE/PROCLAMATIONS 
 That correspondence items 8.1 – 8.8 be received. 

Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
Seconded by: Councillor Clark 

CARRIED 
ACTION ITEMS 
No items. 

 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.1 Heather McNell, Director of Regional Planning and Electoral Area Services, 
 Planning and Environment, Metro Vancouver, dated June 20, 2019 regarding 
 Regional Long-Range Growth and Transportation Scenarios – Final Summary 
 Report (full report available in the Village office) 
8.2 John Willms, 4625 Belcarra Bay Road, dated June 23, 2019 regarding Town Hall 
 Meetings. 
8.3 David Weber, Director, City Clerk’s Office, City of Richmond, dated June 28, 
 2019 regarding Proposed UBCM Resolution – Statement of Disclosure Updates 
8.4 David Weber, Director, City Clerk’s Office, City of Richmond, dated June 28, 
 2019 regarding Proposed UBCM Resolution – Conflict of Interest Complaint 
 Mechanism 
8.5 David Weber, Director, City Clerk’s Office, City of Richmond, dated June 28, 
 2019 regarding Lobbyist Registration 
8.6 Meghan Lahti, Acting Mayor, City of Port Moody, dated June 27, 2019 regarding 
 Support for Property Assessed Clean Energy Enabling Legislation for BC 

8.7 Shane Brienen, Mayor, District of Houston, dated June 19, 2019 regarding 
 Provincial Support for Libraries 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  July 8, 2019 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\2019 07 08  Regular Council Minutes.docx 

8.8 Aaron Stone, Mayor, Town of Ladysmith, dated June 27, 2019 regarding 
 Provincial Support for Libraries 

9. NEW BUSINESS 
 No items 
10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 

Dave Warren, 4925 Robson Road, queried regarding ticketing along Sasamat 
Lake by RCMP and Belcarra bylaw officers. 
Dave Goodman, 5136 Whiskey Cove Lane, queried regarding the Bowen Island 
bus hailing pilot program.  
Peter Struk, 4575 Belcarra Bay Road, queried regarding parking regulations 
along Bedwell Bay Road by the multi-use courts. 
Ron Davis, 280 Turtlehead Road, queried regarding placement of parking signs 
and the commencement of towing in the Village. 
Fraser MacDonald, 4903 Robson Road, queried regarding parking ticket 
collection rates. 

11. RESOLUTION TO CLOSE MEETING 
 No items 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 
 That the July 8, 2019 Regular Meeting be adjourned at 8:36 pm. 

CARRIED 
 

Certified Correct: 
 
 
 
 

 
    

Neil Belenkie  
Mayor  

  Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



  
COUNCIL REPORT 

 
Date: July 22, 2019  

From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 

Subject: Temporary Use Permit for Evangelical Laymen’s Church “Tea 
Room” (#TUP-2019-01) and  
Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw 435, 2011,  
Amendment Bylaw No. 541, 2019  

 
 
Recommendations 

1. That the Evangelical Laymen’s Church be permitted to host bread and tea gatherings 
in July, August, and September 2019, while the Official Community Plan (OCP) 
amendments are circulated and reviewed for Public Hearing and Third Reading; and 

      That Council authorize staff to develop an Event Permitting procedure. 
 
2. That the Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw  

No. 541, 2019, be read a First and Second time: and  
That the OCP Bylaw 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw No. 541, 2019 be referred to 
Public Hearing on September 9, 2019; and 
That Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw  
No. 541, 2019 be circulated to Metro Vancouver, the City of Port Moody, the Village 
of Anmore, and the Tsleil-Waututh Nation pursuant to Section 475 of the Local 
Government Act.  

 
3. That staff be directed to issue formal notice that a resolution is proposed under 

Section 493 of the Local Government Act to issue Temporary Use Permit #2019-01 
for 8 Corners Canada Inc. substantially in accordance with Attachment 1.   

Purpose 
To initiate an OCP amendment to enable Temporary Use Permits to be issued in the Village. 
To present Temporary Use Permit (#TUP 2019-01) for Council’s issuance, subject to conditions, 
at a subsequent Council meeting. 
To provide Council with an update on the future aspirations of the Evangelical Laymen’s Church 
of Canada, for their property, which would require an OCP amendment and rezoning.  
 
Background 
The subject lands (ELC Lands), legally described as PARCEL "E" (EXPLANATORY PLAN 
10236) WEST HALF OF THE NORTH WEST QUARTER SECTION 30 TOWNSHIP 39 NEW 
WESTMINSTER DISTRICT are owned by the Evangelical Laymen’s Church (ELC) of Canada 
and located in Farrer Cove. The site is approximately 61 acres; however, the “Tea Room” is 
confined to a portion of one building, identified in Attachment 1 Schedule A.   
 
The ELC currently operates several programs including: 

- Church gatherings; 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.1



Council Report 
July 22, 2019  
Temporary Use Permit for Evangelical Laymen’s Church “Tea Room” (#TUP-2019-01) and  
Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw No. 541, 2019 
Page 2 
  

 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\2019 07 22 TUP for ELC Council Report.docx 

- Gospel conferences;   
- Children’s camps; 
- Bread making and tea workshops; 
- A Commercial tea room; 
- An Annual tea festival; and 
- Renting space to film production companies; 

The ELC has been operating a Tea Room and conducting related commercial operations on the 
site for a number of years in contravention of the Village Official Community Plan (OCP) and 
Zoning Bylaw. 
On February 11, 2019, Council directed staff to work with the ELC toward a Temporary Use 
Permit (TUP) to enable the operation of a Tea Room on the ELC Lands for an initial period of 
three years with the possibility to renew for another three years.  
 
On March 28, 2019 a TUP application was received by the Village. A copy of the Letter of Intent 
for the TUP is included in Attachment 2. 
 
Council passed the following motion on April 24, 2019: 

“That the report dated April 24, 2019 regarding the Temporary Use Permit (TUP) 
Application for Evangelical Laymen’s Church be received for information; and  
That the Evangelical Laymen’s Church be permitted to host bread and tea gatherings in 
April, May, and June 2019, while a TUP application is reviewed, subject to safety 
considerations being met; and  
That staff be directed to process an OCP amendment to enable Temporary Use Permits 
in the Village; and  
That staff be directed to consider a rezoning application and OCP amendment for the 
Evangelical Laymen’s Church Lands should an application be received; and  
That Metro Vancouver, the City of Port Moody, and the Village of Anmore be provided 
with copies of this report.” 

As outlined in this report, approval of a TUP, with conditions, is recommended to enable the 
operation of a Tea Room and for occasional events, festivals, and workshops on the ELC Lands 
for a period of three (3) years from the issuance date of the TUP.  
The range of uses that the ELC has developed and has planned are not often associated with a 
place of worship, nor is a church typically located on a site of this size. A more fundamental 
evaluation of the future use of this substantial property may occur with a development 
application by the owner; if not, the Village should also address this land use and access 
question as part of its next OCP review.  
Official Community Plan (OCP) Amendment 
Under Section 492 of the Local Government Act (LGA), the Village may designate areas in an 
OCP where temporary uses are allowed and may specify general conditions regarding the 
issuance of TUPs in those areas. Council may then issue TUPs by resolution and may specify 
conditions under which the temporary use may be carried out. The LGA enables Council to 
issue a TUP for a maximum of three years and a TUP may be renewed only once. 
The provision for temporary uses (originally called temporary commercial and industrial uses) 
was made by the Province leading up to Expo 86 at the request of the Union of B.C. 
Municipalities (UBCM) and member municipalities. The Province required an OCP amendment 
process to ensure the citizenry were aware of this broad potential. Many, if not most, Metro 
municipalities have had this land use development option available for 30 years or more.  



Council Report 
July 22, 2019  
Temporary Use Permit for Evangelical Laymen’s Church “Tea Room” (#TUP-2019-01) and  
Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw No. 541, 2019 
Page 3 
  

 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\2019 07 22 TUP for ELC Council Report.docx 

Currently, TUPs are not addressed by the Village OCP. To enable Council to issue a resolution 
to permit temporary uses on the ELC lands, an amendment to the OCP is required. A proposed 
amendment to the OCP to allow TUPs is included in Attachment 3.  
The proposed OCP amendment would enable Council to issue TUPs anywhere in the Village, 
but sets general conditions barring industrial uses, limiting commercial uses to properties zoned 
Civic Institutional and Regional Park by the Zoning Bylaw, and sets other requirements to limit 
the impacts of temporary uses.  
This amendment deals solely with TUPs and does not address any permanent uses in the 
Village. Should a rezoning application be received for the ELC lands in the future, a separate 
amendment to the OCP would be required.  
Section 475 of the Local Government Act requires the Village to consider whether consultation 
with agencies, municipalities, or First Nations adjacent to the Village is required. This report 
recommends Council notify Metro Vancouver, the City of Port Moody, the Village of Anmore, 
and the Tsleil-Waututh Nation of the proposed OCP amendment.   
Temporary Use Permit Duration 
The issuance of a Temporary Use Permit (TUP) for the ELC Lands is contingent on an 
amendment to the Village Official Community Plan. Given notification and procedural 
requirements, the TUP cannot be issued prior to the Belcarra Council next meeting in 
September. As the ELC Tea Room operations are primarily seasonal, issuing a three-year TUP 
would enable these operations during the summer of 2020, 2021, and 2022. The end date 
would be set for three years after the TUP resolution is issued and signed.  
Public Input and General Considerations 
The Evangelical Laymen’s Church hosted a Public Information Meeting (PIM) to share details of 
the proposal with the public and provide an opportunity for input. Notification took place by a 
variety of methods, including: a mail drop, a Tri-Cities News advertisement, a group Village 
email, a sign display, a notice at Municipal Hall, and a notice was posted on Village website.  
The PIM was attended by approximately 15-20 people and ran from 2:00 pm to 5:00 pm on  
May 11, 2019.  
 
Village staff, consultants, and members of the applicant team attended the PIM to answer 
questions and listen to feedback. The applicants distributed comment forms to attendees: 

- 8 comment forms were completed and returned; and 
- 5 pieces of email correspondence related to the application were received.  

Support for the proposal cited the following: 
- ELC’s use of the site was described as an asset to the community and will contribute to 

community-building and community character. 
- A trial of the proposal would be worthwhile exercise. 
- A Tea Room would help to open the site for visitors to enjoy. 
- Support for small businesses opening in the Village. 
- Support for the use of the dock for access to the site.  

Concerns related to the proposal cited the following: 
- Questions of neighborliness with adjacent properties. 
- Lack of access through ELC Lands to neighbouring private properties, including 

suggestions the ELC share its parking with adjacent owners. 
- Desire to see lands used for camp purposes only. 
- Concerns about impacts on the area and the ELC’s history of non-compliance with 

Village regulations. 



Council Report 
July 22, 2019  
Temporary Use Permit for Evangelical Laymen’s Church “Tea Room” (#TUP-2019-01) and  
Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw No. 541, 2019 
Page 4 
  

 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\2019 07 22 TUP for ELC Council Report.docx 

- Concerns about potential traffic impact and inadequate access through Metro Vancouver 
Park. 

- Concerns about garbage management and wildlife protection. 
The current zoning of the site allows Civic Use, Public Service Use, and Assembly Use, as well 
as accessory uses. As the application is limited to a Tea Room with a capacity of 24 patrons, 
the overall impact of the temporary use on the site is not anticipated to be significant. The 
proposed use is not a significant departure from uses permitted on the site, including social halls 
and cultural centres, which fall under the permitted Assembly Use. A TUP would not allow 
permanent commercial use on the site or enable large-scale development.  
As the Village currently has very limited commercial activity, a Tea Room would contribute to 
introducing some mix of uses, providing a social setting for community residents to gather and 
somewhere to access food within the Village (albeit in a limited capacity). To some extent this 
may help to reduce trip length for residents looking to access these types of services. 
As a Tea Room will generate food waste, adequate signage and waste management 
procedures will be required as a condition of the TUP to avoid harming wildlife.  
Correspondence with City of Port Moody and Village of Anmore 
The April 24, 2019 Council Report on the ELC TUP application was circulated to the City of Port 
Moody and the Village of Anmore. To date, no formal response has been issued from either 
municipality.  
 
Further correspondence was issued to Port Moody by request of the Farrer Cove Committee as 
a preliminary step to determine the possibility of securing road access to Farrer Cover. The 
proposed road alignment runs along the BC Hydro Right of Way west of Sasamat Lake from 
Senkler Road. Conversations related to this road access are considered to be preliminary and 
ongoing. As outlined elsewhere, access by the existing gravel pathway to the east of Sasamat 
Lake, subject to a suitable agreement with Metro Parks, is adequate for the uses proposed 
under the subject TUP.  
 
As this TUP requires an amendment to the Village OCP, this report recommends circulating 
Port Moody, Anmore, Tsleil-Waututh Nation, and Metro Vancouver Parks on the proposed OCP 
amending bylaw.  
 
Transportation, Access, and Metro Vancouver Parks Engagement  
The ELC Lands have no formal road access and are not connected to the BC Highway network. 
In practice, the Lands are accessed primarily through an unpaved gravel path that runs through 
Metro Vancouver Parks land located in Port Moody, accessed from the parking lot at White Pine 
Beach.  
 
Metro Vancouver operates a park gate at the entrance to White Pine Beach Road, which Park 
Wardens close when the parking lot is full. Residents of Farrer Cove and the ELC have keys to 
the park gate as part of a longstanding informal agreement. Metro Vancouver is limited in its 
ability to allow access to Farrer Cove for commercial purposes and has indicated it would not 
support an increase in vehicle traffic through the park and on the access road. As such, a 
suitable access agreement and gravel path maintenance agreement will be required with Metro 
Vancouver to enable a temporary Tea Room on the ELC Lands.   
 
The ELC, Metro Parks, and Village of Belcarra staff have communicated on several occasions 
to advance a suitable access arrangement. To date, the ELC has provided a detailed list of its 
church and commercial operations, outlining what times of day programs run and how access 
will be managed. The ELC hires a 24-passenger shuttle bus for transportation during special 



Council Report 
July 22, 2019  
Temporary Use Permit for Evangelical Laymen’s Church “Tea Room” (#TUP-2019-01) and  
Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw No. 541, 2019 
Page 5 
  

 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\2019 07 22 TUP for ELC Council Report.docx 

events, with service running every 30 minutes during the annual tea festival and by request for 
the Tea Room. For smaller events, the ELC uses their own vehicles to transport people to their 
site. A preliminary schedule of ELC activities and access protocol is included in Attachment 4 of 
this report.  
 
A formal agreement between the ELC and Metro Parks is required as a condition of the 
proposed TUP. The Temporary Use Permit may not be authorized until an access agreement 
with Metro Vancouver Parks is approved.   
 
In addition to vehicular access, the ELC Lands can be accessed by boat. The ELC has installed 
a 4,000 sq. ft. dock (372 sq. m.), with a perimeter of approximately 300 ft. (91 m.). This can 
accommodate between 10-14 boats, kayaks, or other watercraft as a means to provide 
alternative access to the ELC Lands. The ELC has committed to encouraging water access to 
the Tea Room and to events to reduce vehicular access to the Lands.  
 
The ELC Lands have an unpaved parking area of approximately 11,000 sq. ft. (quarter acre) at 
the entrance to their lands, which can accommodate approximately 45 vehicles, in addition to 
other parking along gravel paths available on the ELC Lands. As the TUP is conditional on an 
access agreement with Metro Vancouver that limits vehicular access to the site, no additional 
parking considerations or mitigation strategies are suggested.  
 
Financial Implications 
A TUP to allow a Tea Room on the ELC Lands is not anticipated to have significant financial 
implications for the Village; however, some revenue may be generated through the introduction 
of commercial activity in the Village.  
 
The ELC property is currently taxed at a residential rate of 1.03450 per $1,000 in value. In 
determining the tax class of the property, BC Assessment would look at the area considered to 
fall within Class 6 – Business/Other, which may include some land surrounding the Tea Room. 
The area falling under Class 6 would be determined by BC Assessment at a later date. 
Belcarra’s tax classes are outlined in Table 1.  
 
Table 1. Village of Belcarra Tax Classes (2018) 
Taxation Class General Municipal Purposes (per $1,000 in 

value) 
Class 1 Residential 1.03450 
Class 2 Utilities 3.62075 
Class 6 Business/Other 2.53453 
Class 8 Recreational/Non-Profit 1.03450 

 
An at-a-glance review by BC Assessment suggested that the Tea Room could add an estimated 
net value of $200,000 to $250,000 to the land. Taxed at the Class 6 rate, an additional $506.90 
to $633.63 may be anticipated in tax revenue to the Village based on the 2018 rates.  
 
 
Future Conference Centre Rezoning Application 
The Evangelical Laymen’s Church submitted a letter of intent to the Village on March 31, 2019 
expressing intent to apply to rezone 10 acres of the property for commercial use, including a 4-
storey building with a conference hall, offices, and meeting rooms, as well as permanent 
operation of the Tea Room. A copy of the letter of intent for the rezoning of the property is 
included in Attachment 5.  



Council Report 
July 22, 2019  
Temporary Use Permit for Evangelical Laymen’s Church “Tea Room” (#TUP-2019-01) and  
Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw No. 541, 2019 
Page 6 
  

 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\2019 07 22 TUP for ELC Council Report.docx 

The Village has indicated to the ELC that prior to submitting a formal application, a “pre-
application” should be submitted for Council review, including a sketch concept of the proposal. 
The applicant has indicated that they intend to submit a concept in the fall of 2019.   
The Village would not support a rezoning of the ELC Lands to permit a use other than those 
currently permitted under the Zoning Bylaw or contemplated under TUP-2019-01 without a 
suitable, permanent access arrangement. The Farrer Cover committee has carried out 
significant work and conducted initial research to support an access arrangement along the 
Farrer Cove Hydro right-of-way. Conversations with neighbouring municipalities and Metro 
Vancouver are ongoing with respect to this potential access arrangement, which will impact the 
development potential of Farrer Cover and the ELC Lands.  
The creation of a conference centre on the ELC Lands would be a significant departure from 
existing land use in the Village of Belcarra. The Village currently has no commercially-zoned 
land, and very few commercial uses are permitted under the existing OCP (e.g. home-based 
businesses). A rezoning would require significant review as well as robust engagement with 
Village residents and other stakeholders. Concerns previously identified, including but not 
limited to those concerns related to access, would need to be addressed as part of the rezoning. 
 
Event Permits 
The Village of Belcarra currently does not have a policy in place to address temporary events or 
festivals and to issue related permits. Currently, only permits for filming in the Village is 
permitted.  The proposed TUP includes ELC activities such as the annual Tea Festival. At the 
direction of Council, Village staff will develop a policy and introduce changes to the Fees and 
Charges Bylaw to enable streamlined issuance of Event Permits. The authority to issue an 
Event Permit may be delegated to Village staff to enable permits to be issued in a short time 
period with fewer procedural requirements.  
 

Attachments: 
1. Temporary Use Permit #2019-01 

a. Schedule A: Tea Room Location 
2. ELC Temporary Use Permit - Letter of Intent 
3. Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw No. 541, 2019, 
4. Church Operations and Commercial Operations 
5. ELC Rezoning Letter of Intent 

 
 
 
 



 
 
 

  
 

 
TEMPORARY USE PERMIT NO. 2019-01 

 
Issued pursuant to Section 493 of the Local Government Act, RSBC 2015, c. 1 
 

1. This Permit is issued to: 
8 Corners Canada Inc. 
Incorporation Number BC1041748 
#148 – 1489 Marine Drive 
West Vancouver, BC V7T 1B8 

 
(hereinafter called the “Permitee”) as the owner and/or authorized occupier of that certain parcel 
of land situate in the Village of Belcarra, in the Province of British Columbia, and more 
particularly known and described as: 
 

Parcel Identifier: 013-595-695 
 

Legal Description: PARCEL “E” (EXPLANATORY PLAN 10236) 
WEST HALF OF THE NORTH WEST QUARTER 
SECTION 30 TOWNSHIP 39 NEW 
WESTMINSTER DISTRICT 
 

Civic Address: 
 

3000 CAMP HOWDY ROAD 
BELCARRA, BC 
V3H 5B6 

 
 
(hereinafter called the “Lands”) 
 

2. This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all bylaws of the Village of Belcarra 
(hereinafter referred to as the “Village”), except as specifically varied or supplemented 
by this Permit. 
 

3. The Lands have been designated as a Temporary Use Permit Area in “Village of 
Belcarra Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw No. 541, 
2019”. 

 
4. Notwithstanding “Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018”, as amended, but 

subject to the terms and conditions contained herein, permission is hereby given to 
temporarily use a portion of the Lands as identified herein for the following purposes: 

• “Tea Room,” defined as the use of premises for the primary purpose of 
selling and serving prepared food and non-alcoholic beverages to the 
public during hours of operation, where food and non-alcoholic beverages 
are consumed on the premises; 

• Tea Festivals;  
• Breadmaking and Tea Workshops; and  
• Uses of a similar nature. 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Temporary Use Permit No. 2019 – 01 

8 Corners Canada Inc.  

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1



 
Village of Belcarra 
Temporary Use Permit #2019-01  
8 Corners Canada Inc.  
 
 

 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\Attachment 1 -  ELC Temporary 
Use Permit.docx 

 
5. The Temporary Use Permit shall be carried out according to the following conditions: 

 
a. The Tea Room use and Breadmaking and Tea Workshops must be 

contained entirely within the existing building and patio area identified 
as “Tea Room Location” on the plan attached hereto as Schedule A 
(“temporary use permit area”); 

b. The Tea Festival use must be contained within the area identified as 
“TUP Area” on the plan attached hereto as Schedule A (“temporary use 
permit area”); 

c. An amendment to the Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan to 
permit Temporary Use Permits must be enacted prior to the execution 
of this Permit; 

d. A formal access agreement and path maintenance agreement must be 
reached between Metro Vancouver and the Evangelical Laymen’s 
Church prior to this permit taking effect and said agreement must 
remain in effect for the duration of this permit; 

e. A “Tea Room” shall not operate on the property without a valid business 
license from the Village of Belcarra; 

f. The Temporary Use Permit area may not be altered or improved upon 
in any way without the prior express written consent of the Village, such 
consent to be at the sole discretion of the Village; 

g. A “Tea Room” shall not operate without a Building Permit issued by the 
Village of Belcarra; 

h. Tea Room operations must cease should any deficiencies be identified 
by the Village of Belcarra Building Inspector and any deficiencies must 
be addressed prior to recommencing activities; 

i. No other commercial uses may be permitted under this permit other 
than those identified under Section 4 of this permit;  

j. A waste management plan suitable to the Village of Belcarra must be in 
place during the term of this TUP to prevent attracting wildlife, including 
maintenance of adequate signage in the Tea Room kitchen and at 
garbage disposal sites to encourage responsible waste disposal. 

 
6. The Temporary Use Permit Area shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms 

and conditions and provisions of this Permit. This Permit does not constitute a rezoning, 
subdivision approval, sign permit or building permit. 
 

7. This permit is not transferable. 
 

8. This permit shall lapse three (3) years from the date of issuance. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Village of Belcarra 
Temporary Use Permit #2019-01  
8 Corners Canada Inc.  
 
 

 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\Attachment 1 -  ELC Temporary 
Use Permit.docx 

 
 
 
 
AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION PASSED by the Village Council on the ___ day of 
___________, 20__. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF this Permit has been executed by the Permittee and this Permit is 
hereby issued by the Village the ___day of ______, 20___.  
 
 
8 CORNERS CANADA INC. 
By its authorized signatories: 
 
_______________________ 
Signature 
 
Print Name: _____________________________ 
 
Title: ___________________________________ 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Signature 
 
Print Name: _____________________________ 
 
Title: ___________________________________ 
 
 
VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
By its authorized signatories: 
 
 
_______________________ 
Neil Belenkie 
Mayor  
 
 
_______________________ 
Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\Attachment 1 Schedule 
A - ELC.docx 

8 Corners Canada Inc. 
Temporary Use Permit #2019-01 

 
 

Schedule A 
Temporary Use Permit Area 

 

 



 

3000 Camp Howdy Road T: 604-939-7921 elccamphowdy@gmail.com 

Belcarra BC, Canada V3H 5B6  camphowdyelc.com 

To: 

Village of Belcarra 

4084 Bedwell Bay Road 

Belcarra, BC V3H 4P8 

 

From: 

Evangelical Layman’s Church of Canada (Vancouver) 

3000 Camp Howdy Road 

Belcarra BC V3H 5B6 

 

Attn: Mr. Dan Watson, Brook Pooni Associates & Ms. Lorna Dysart, Chief Administration Officer, Village 

of Belcarra 

 

Re:  Letter of Intent for 8 Corners Tea Room TUP at Camp Howdy 
 

I am pleased to write this letter of intent with excitement for our plans for the future of Camp Howdy 

in the community. 

 

It is our intention to create valued events and operate to be an integral part of the community. 

We have been creating some excitement through our annual tea festival, bread and tea workshops, and 

the tea room.  We are operating these events with the mindset of creating minimal impact on traffic 

and our surrounding environment.  For example, we have included a shuttle service during the festival.  

We have built a 4000 sq. ft. dock, so that people with boats can arrive by water. 

 

We have eliminated weddings and most corporate retreats to concentrate our focus on activities and 

events that are more community oriented. 

 

We will continue to work with all sectors of the government such as Metro Vancouver, The Village of 

Belcarra, and the health department, the ministry of Environment regarding sewage, the Fire 

department, and VPA. 

 

We would like to propose the following which will allow us to continue to do what we have been 

doing, as well as to create a few more events throughout the year. 

 

 

Proposal:  Temporary Use Permit (TUP) for 8 Corners Tea Room 

Desired opening: April 2019 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 2



 

3000 Camp Howdy Road T: 604-939-7921 elccamphowdy@gmail.com 

Belcarra BC, Canada V3H 5B6  camphowdyelc.com 

Current Zoning: CI – Civic Institutional 

 

Current operations: 

• Church gatherings on Tuesdays (7pm-11pm), Wednesdays (7-11pm), Saturdays (2-11pm), and 

Sundays (11am-7pm) 

• About 5 workshops a year (bread and tea workshops usually on Saturdays: 9am-9pm) 

• Annual tea festival (the 2nd and the 3rd weekends in July consisting of 2 Fridays, 2 Saturdays, 2 

Sundays: 11am-7pm) 

• During the tea festival, Shuttle service (every 30 minutes from the school on Ioco and 1st 

Avenue) plus on-site parking (100+ spaces) when the park gate is not closed; boat access (at 

4000 sq. ft. dock) is also welcome 

• Renting out to movie companies (usually 2-3 times a year) 

• 2 gospel conferences (usually March and August: Monday-Friday: 8pm-11pm) 

• About 2 children’s camps (usually in March and August) 

 

Proposed Tea Room Operation: 

The following is the situation at present (no site improvements are planned for the Tea Room except 

new paint) 

• 500 sq. ft. space with about 24 seating capacity 

• Compliant to the BC Building Code 2012 

• Obtained Health Permit, clearance from Ministry of Environment regarding sewage, 

clearance from Fire Department, and clearance from VPA 

• Planned hours of operation: Fridays and Saturdays (11am-4pm); open more days and 

longer hours in Summer (weather permitting) 

• shuttle service proposed from gate when gate is closed 

• on-site parking (100+ spaces available) and boat access (at 4000 sq. ft. dock) welcome 

• During the proposed process, we would like to continue operating the Tea Room starting 

early April 2019. 

 

Note: Most functions are closed during winter months. 



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\Attach 3 Bylaw 541, 2019 - Official Community 
Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011  Amendment Bylaw No. 541, 2019.docx 

 
 

 
 
 
An amendment bylaw to enable Temporary Use Permits in the Village of Belcarra.  
 
WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time; 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows: 

1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan Bylaw 
No. 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw No. 541, 2019” 
 

2. That the “Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011” be amended: 

a) By adding after Section 3.1.2 (b) (ii) the following: 

  iii)  Council may issue a Temporary Use Permit (TUP) pursuant to OCP Schedule E.   
and 
 
b) By adding Schedule E to the Official Community Plan as follows: 

 
SCHEDULE E: TEMPORARY USE PERMITS (TUPs)  
 
The Local Government Act enables the Village of Belcarra to designate areas where 
temporary uses may be permitted and to set general conditions that apply to temporary 
uses.  
 
Council may, by resolution, upon application from a land owner, issue a Temporary Use 
Permit (TUP) to allow any use not permitted under the regulations of the Village of 
Belcarra Zoning Bylaw.  
 
A TUP may be issued for a maximum of three years and may be renewed only once for a 
second period of up to three years, at Council’s discretion. Council may issue a TUP with 
additional conditions and may shorten the duration of the permit to less than three years.  
 
Temporary Use Permit Areas: Temporary Use Permits may be issued anywhere in the 
Village of Belcarra; however, TUPs may only be issued if they meet the general conditions 
below and where residents and landowners have been notified pursuant to the Local 
Government Act. 
 
General Conditions:  

1. A temporary use should not unduly restrict the existing use or a future use of the 
land identified under the Official Community Plan.  

2. A temporary use should not have a significant negative impact on adjoining 
properties or be incompatible with adjoining uses.  

3. The temporary use should not negatively impact public health, safety, or 
environmental conditions.   

4. No industrial uses may be permitted within the Village.  
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011 

Amendment Bylaw No. 541, 2019 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 3



Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011 
 Amendment Bylaw No. 541, 2019   

2 
 

 
 
 
 
5. Commercial uses may only be permitted in lands designated CI-1 (Civic 

Institutional) or P-1 (Regional Park) by the Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw.  
  
 
 

Read a First Time on 

Read a Second Time on 

Read a Third Time on 

ADOPTED by Council on 

 
 
 
 
 

  

Neil Belenkie 
Mayor 

Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 

This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 435, 2011 
Amendment Bylaw No. 541, 2019 

 
 
 

 

Chief Administrative Officer 



 

3000 Camp Howdy Road T: 604-939-7921 elccamphowdy@gmail.com 

Belcarra BC, Canada V3H 5B6  camphowdyelc.com 

Church Operations 

1. Church gathering on Sundays (11am-7pm)-around 70 people 

2. Church gathering on Saturdays (2-11pm)-around 20 people 

3. Church gathering on Tuesdays (7-11pm)-around 20 people 

4. Church gathering on Wednesdays (7-11pm)-around 20 people 

5. 2 gospel conferences (usually March and August: Monday-Friday: 8pm-

11pm)-around 70 people 

6. About 2 children’s camps (usually in March and August: Monday-Friday: 

sleep at the camp)-around 20 people 

 

Commercial Operations 

7. Annual tea festival (the 2nd and the 3rd weekends in July consisting of 2 

Fridays, 2 Saturdays, 2 Sundays : 11am-7pm)-Shuttle Service 

8. About 5 workshops a year (bread and tea workshops usually on Saturdays: 

9am-9pm)-around 16 participants-Shuttle Service or Special Permit 

9. Tea Room (Fridays and Saturdays: 11am-4pm, open more days and longer 

hours in Summer weather permitting)-Shuttle Service 

10.  Renting out to movie companies (usually 2-3 times a year)) 

 

• Most functions are closed during Winter 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 4



 

3000 Camp Howdy Road T: 604-939-7921 elccamphowdy@gmail.com 

Belcarra BC, Canada V3H 5B6  camphowdyelc.com 

To: 

Village of Belcarra 

4084 Bedwell Bay Road 

Belcarra, BC V3H 4P8 

 

From: 

Evangelical Layman’s Church of Canada (Vancouver) 

3000 Camp Howdy Road 

Belcarra BC V3H 5B6 

 

Attn: Mr. Dan Watson, Brook Pooni Associates & Ms. Lorna Dysart, Chief Administration Officer, Village 

of Belcarra 

 

Re:  Letter of Intent for Rezoning of Camp Howdy 
 

I am pleased to write this letter of intent with excitement for our plans for the future of Camp Howdy 

in the community. 

 

It is our intention to create valued events and operate to be an integral part of the community. 

We have been creating some excitement through our annual tea festival, bread and tea workshops, and 

the tea room.  We are operating these events with the mindset of creating minimal impact on traffic 

and our surrounding environment.  For example, we have included a shuttle service during the festival.  

We have built a 4000 sq. ft. dock, so that people with boats can arrive by water. 

 

We have eliminated weddings and most corporate retreats to concentrate our focus on activities and 

events that are more community oriented. 

 

We will continue to work with all sectors of the government such as Metro Vancouver, The Village of 

Belcarra, and the health department, the ministry of Environment regarding sewage, the Fire 

department, and VPA. 

 

We would like to propose the following which will allow us to continue to do what we have been 

doing, as well as to create a few more events throughout the year. 

 

Proposal:  Partial zoning change to commercial (10 acres) & 

permanent opening of 8 Corners Tea Room 

 

Current Zoning: CI – Civic Institutional 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 5



 

3000 Camp Howdy Road T: 604-939-7921 elccamphowdy@gmail.com 

Belcarra BC, Canada V3H 5B6  camphowdyelc.com 

Current operations: 

• Church gatherings on Tuesdays (7pm-11pm), Wednesdays (7-11pm), Saturdays (2-11pm), and 

Sundays (11am-7pm) 

• About 5 workshops a year (bread and tea workshops usually on Saturdays: 9am-9pm) 

• Annual tea festival (the 2nd and the 3rd weekends in July consisting of 2 Fridays, 2 Saturdays, 2 

Sundays: 11am-7pm) 

• During the tea festival, Shuttle service (every 30 minutes from the school on Ioco and 1st 

Avenue) plus on-site parking (100+ spaces) when the park gate is not closed; boat access (at 

4000 sq. ft. dock) is also welcome 

• Renting out to movie companies (usually 2-3 times a year) 

• 2 gospel conferences (usually March and August: Monday-Friday: 8pm-11pm) 

• About 2 children’s camps (usually in March and August) 

 

Proposed Long-term Site Improvements: 

 

A 4-storey building with a conference hall, offices, and breakout rooms (replacing about 5 cabins on 

the hill beside the office building OR under the man grass area), and the permanent rezoning to allow 

for the operation of the 8 Corners Tea Room. 

 

(This would allow us to open Sunday services to the surrounding communities to enjoy nature while 

worshipping God, including a few more conferences per year (gospel and others), and a few health and 

history seminars a year.) 

 

Proposed Tea Room Operation: 

The following is the situation at present (no site improvements are planned for the Tea Room except 

new paint) 

• 500 sq. ft. space with about 24 seating capacity 

• Compliant to the BC Building Code 2012 

• Obtained Health Permit, clearance from Ministry of Environment regarding sewage, 

clearance from Fire Department, and clearance from VPA 

• Planned hours of operation: Fridays and Saturdays (11am-4pm); open more days and 

longer hours in Summer (weather permitting) 

• shuttle service proposed from gate when gate is closed 

• on-site parking (100+ spaces available) and boat access (at 4000 sq. ft. dock) welcome 

• During the proposed process, we would like to continue operating the Tea Room from 

April. 

 

Note: Most functions are closed during winter 



 

  
 
This Agreement is dated for reference the 22nd day of July 2019. 

BETWEEN: 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
   4084 Bedwell Bay Road 
   Belcarra, BC  V3H 4P8 
   

(the “Village”) 
 

AND: 

METRO VANCOUVER REGIONAL DISTRICT 
Metrotower III, 4730 Kingsway,  
Burnaby, BC  V5H 0C6  
  

   (the “Regional District”) 
WHEREAS: 
A. The Regional District is the owner in fee simple of two parcels of land within the Village 

of Belcarra and legally described as: 

PID 011-554-541 
  THE FRACTIONAL TOWNSHIP SOUTH WEST OF QUARTER SECTION 23  
  IN THE FRACTIONAL TOWNSHIP WEST OF TOWNSHIP 39 NWD   
  EXCEPT: (1) PARCEL D (REFERENCE PLAN 17379), AND (2) PART ON  
  SRW PLAN 27123 (the “Works Yard Parcel”), and 

 
PID 018-353-347 
LOT A DISTRICT LOT 229 GROUP 1 NEW WESTMINSTER 
DISTRICT PLAN 4072 (the “Picnic Area”); 

 
B. The Regional District currently utilizes an existing water system on these two parcels, but 

due to a number of power outages which have resulted in, and continue to result in 
insufficient disinfection of water from the current water system, and an increasing 
number of resulting boil water advisories being issued, the Regional District has 
requested that the portions of the parcels described below in Recital E  be connected to 
the water distribution system owned by the Village (the “Water System”), and which 
services the local service area established by the Village of Belcarra Water Supply and 
Distribution Local Area Service No. 1 Establishment and Loan Authorization Bylaw No. 
413, 2008 (the “Local Service Area”), and be supplied with water from the Water 
System in accordance with the Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 (the 
“Waterworks Bylaw”); 

 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
WATER SERVICING AGREEMENT 

With 
METRO VANCOUVER REGIONAL 

DISTRICT 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.2



 
 

Village of Belcarra 
Water Servicing Agreement    2 
Metro Vancouver Regional District  

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\5.2 2019 07 22 - 2019 Water Servicing Agreement - Metro Parks.docx 

C. The Waterworks Bylaw does not currently contemplate use of water for public park 
purposes; 

D. The Regional District requires use of water for public park purposes, which includes 
water for bathroom, concession, picnicking, and visitor consumption; 

E. The Village is prepared to allow the connection of the Picnic Area and that portion of the 
Works Yard Parcel that is within the Local Service Area (hereinafter referred to as the  
“Lands”) to the Village System to provide water to the Regional District on the terms 
and conditions set out in this Agreement; 

F. The Regional District has authorized the execution of this Agreement by a resolution 
duly passed on the ____ day of _____________ 2019; 

G. The Village has authorized the execution of this Agreement by a resolution duly passed 
on the _____  day of ________________ 2019; 

NOW THEREFORE In consideration of the terms and conditions set out below, and other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged by 
both parties, the parties covenant and agree as follows: 
 
1.0 Connection & Connection Fee 

1.1 The Regional District agrees to pay to the Village, in exchange for the Village permitting 
the Lands to connect to the Water System, the following amounts, for a collective 
connection fee of $42,445.00: 

(a) the Capital Cost of $34,245.00, which amount represents the Village calculation of an 
appropriate share of the costs of constructing the Water System given the additional use 
of water by the Regional District contemplated by this Agreement; and 

(b) an amount equal to $8,200.00, as a contribution towards legal fees or consultant fees 
incurred by the Village in association with the Regional District’s request to connect to 
the Water System and the preparation of this Agreement  

(collectively the “Fee”). 

1.2 Following payment of the Fee, the Regional District shall apply to connect the Lands to 
the Water System and shall comply with all connection requirements under the 
Waterworks Bylaw and any additional requirements of the Village, including payment of 
the connection fee specified in the Bylaw, which is currently $750.00. 

1.3 The Village agrees that if for whatever reason the Regional District’s application to 
connect the Lands to the Water System under the Waterworks Bylaw is refused, the 
Village shall return the Fee to the Regional District, and the parties shall work towards 
establishing conditions under which application can be accepted.  Once those conditions 
have been established, the Regional District shall repay the Fee. 



 
 

Village of Belcarra 
Water Servicing Agreement    3 
Metro Vancouver Regional District  

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\5.2 2019 07 22 - 2019 Water Servicing Agreement - Metro Parks.docx 

1.4 Notwithstanding Section 1.1, the Regional District and Village obligations under this 
Agreement are subject to the satisfaction of the following conditions precedent: 

(a) On or before September 9, 2019 the Village Council amending the Waterworks 
Bylaw to permit use of water for public park purposes, as described in Recital D 
to this Agreement; and 

(b)  The connection fee specified in the Village’s Fees and Charges Bylaw for a parks 
purposes connection being set at $750 at the time the Regional District applies to 
connect to the Water System. 

In consideration of $10.00 non-refundable paid by the Village to the Regional District 
and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
acknowledged by the Regional District, the Regional District agrees to remain bound by 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement while it remains subject to the Condition 
Precedent under this section.  If the Village does not give the Regional District notice of 
its satisfaction of the conditions precedent, within the time provided herein, this 
Agreement will be void.   
 

1.5 For the purposes of section 1.3, “park purposes” means use of water for bathroom, 
concession, picnicking, visitor consumption, and other uses of water consistent with use 
of land as a public park. 

1.6 The Regional District acknowledges and agrees that: 

(a) the Regional District shall only be permitted to connect to the Water System in 
accordance with the Waterworks Bylaw, including by paying all fees and charges 
required to be paid under the Waterworks Bylaw for connection to the Water System 
(which fees and charges are in addition to the  Fee); and 

(b) the Regional District acquires no special or extraordinary rights with respect to the Water 
System by virtue of this Agreement or payment of the Fee;  

2.0 Further Agreements 

2.1 The Regional District and the Village shall execute such further agreements, authorities 
and assurances as may be necessary to give effect to their covenants herein. 

3.0 Delivery of Notices 

3.1 All notices and other communications with respect to this Agreement shall be given or 
made in writing and may be delivered personally or sent by pre-paid registered mail as 
follows: 

(a) To the Village: 
Attention:  Chief Administrative Officer 
Village of Belcarra 
4084 Bedwell Bay Road 
Belcarra, BC, V3H 4P8  



 
 

Village of Belcarra 
Water Servicing Agreement    4 
Metro Vancouver Regional District  

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\5.2 2019 07 22 - 2019 Water Servicing Agreement - Metro Parks.docx 

 
(b) To the Regional District: 

Attention: Chief Administrative Officer  
Metro Vancouver Regional District 
Metrotower III, 4730 Kingsway,  
Burnaby, BC  V5H 0C6  
 

or at such other address or in care of such other officer or person as the parties 
may advise the other party by notice in writing. 

3.2 The date of receipt of any such notice shall be deemed to be: 

(a) the date of delivery, if delivered personally; or 

(b) five days after the date of mailing in Canada, if mailed; or 

4.0 No Effect on Powers  

4.1 This Agreement does not: 

(a) affect or limit the discretion, rights, duties or powers of the Village under any common 
law or statute, bylaw or other enactment, nor does it create, or is the parties’ intention to 
create, any implied obligations regarding such discretion, rights, duties or powers; 

(b) relieve the Regional District from complying with any common law or any statute, bylaw 
or other enactment. 

5.0 Agreement Binding 

5.1 This Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and 
their respective successors and permitted assigns. 

6.0 Amendment 

6.1 No amendment, termination or variation of the terms, conditions, warranties, covenants, 
agreements and undertakings set out herein shall be of any force or effect unless the same 
is reduced to writing duly executed by all parties hereto in the same manner and with the 
same formality as this Agreement.  

7.0 Waiver 

7.1 An alleged waiver of any breach of this Agreement is effective only if it is an express 
waiver in writing of that breach. A waiver of a breach of this Agreement does not operate 
as a waiver of any other breach of this Agreement. 

8.0 Assignment 

8.1 This Agreement and any right or benefit hereunder may not be assigned by any party 
without the prior express written consent of the other party. 



 
 

Village of Belcarra 
Water Servicing Agreement    5 
Metro Vancouver Regional District  

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\5.2 2019 07 22 - 2019 Water Servicing Agreement - Metro Parks.docx 

9.0 Severability 

9.1 If any part of this Agreement is for any reason held to be invalid by a decision of a court 
with the jurisdiction to do so, the invalid portion is to be considered severed from the rest 
of this Agreement and the decision that it is invalid shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement.  Interpretation 

10.0 Interpretation 

10.1 In this Agreement: 

(a) reference to the singular includes a reference to the plural, and vice versa, unless the 
context requires otherwise; 

(b) article and section headings have been inserted for ease of reference only and are not to 
be used in interpreting this agreement; 

(c) the term “enactment” has the meaning given to it under the Interpretation Act (British 
Columbia) on the reference date of this Agreement; 

(d) reference to any enactment includes any regulations, orders or directives made under the 
authority of that enactment;   

(e) reference to any enactment is a reference to that enactment as consolidated, revised, 
amended, re-enacted or replaced from time to time, unless otherwise expressly provided; 

(f) reference to a particular numbered section, or to a particular lettered schedule, is, unless 
otherwise expressly provided, a reference to the correspondingly numbered section or 
lettered schedule of this Agreement; 

(g) all Schedules to this Agreement form an integral part of this Agreement;  

(h) subject to the Force Majeure Clause, time is of the essence; and 

(i) where the word "including" is followed by a list, the contents of the list are not intended 
to limit or otherwise affect the generality of the expression preceding the word 
"including". 

11.0 Counterparts 

11.1 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and delivered by e-mail, 
each of which shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall be 
deemed to constitute one and the same instrument, provided that any party delivering this 
Agreement by e-mail shall also deliver to the other party an originally executed copy of 
this Agreement. 

 

 



 
 

Village of Belcarra 
Water Servicing Agreement    6 
Metro Vancouver Regional District  

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\5.2 2019 07 22 - 2019 Water Servicing Agreement - Metro Parks.docx 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date below.  
 
Executed the ________ day of _____________, 2019. 
 
VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
by its authorized signatories: 
 
_____________________________ 
Mayor 
 
_____________________________  
Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 
METRO VANCOUVER 
by its authorized signatory: 
 
_____________________________ 
Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\5.3 Council Report - Waterworks Bylaw No. 
456, 2012 Amendment Bylaw No. 540, 2019.doc 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

  
Date: July 22, 2019 
 
From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
Subject: Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012  
 Amendment Bylaw No. 540, 2019 
 
 
Recommendation 

1. That Council rescind “Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 Amendment Bylaw 
No. 539, 2019”, which received first, second and third reading on June 10, 2019. 

 
2. That the “Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 Amendment Bylaw No. 540, 2019” 

be read a first, second and third time.  
 
Purpose 
 
To amend the “Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012” to include additional definitions, new sections, and 
revisions to existing sections to reflect Metro Vancouver’s waterworks connection. 
 
Background 
 
On April 24, 2019, Council approved the request from Metro Vancouver to connect to the Village of 
Belcarra Water System and the associated connection and water utility fees.  
 
Metro Vancouver is seeking permission to connect two parcels of land (PID 011-554-541 & PID 018-
353-347) to the waterworks located within the Village Local Service Area (LSA), as defined in the 
‘Bylaw No. 413, 2008’ (part of “Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012” (‘Bylaw No. 456, 2012’)). Both 
parcels are located within the LSA boundary.  
 
On June 10, 2019, the “Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 Amendment Bylaw        
No. 539, 2019” and accompany report was presented to Council and the bylaw received first, second, and 
third reading. Since then, Metro Vancouver has provided the Village with edits to the amending bylaw, 
which are captured in “Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 Amendment Bylaw No. 
540, 2019” (Attachment A).  
 
The “Village of Belcarra Water Servicing Agreement with the Metro Vancouver Regional District” sets 
out the terms and conditions of the waterworks connection between the Village of Belcarra and Metro 
Vancouver. 
 
Attachments: 

A. Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 Amendment Bylaw No. 540, 2019 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.3



 

  
 

An amendment bylaw to add additional definitions, new sections, and revisions to existing 
sections to reflect Metro Vancouver’s waterworks connection. 

 
WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time 
to time; 

NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra Council enacts as follows: 

1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the "Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw 
No. 456, 2012, Amendment Bylaw No. 540, 2019”. 

2. That the “Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012,” be amended: 

a) By adding the following text to Section 2 – “Definitions”: 
 

• Park Purposes means use of water for sprinkling bathroom, concession, 
picnicking, visitor consumption, and other uses consistent with use of land as a 
Public Park. 

 
• Public Park means land owned or occupied by a municipality or regional district 

and used as a public park.  
 

b) Adding the following bolded text to Section 16 – “Extent of Connection”: 

• b) the Water Service will be used only for the supply of water for an interior fire 
sprinkler system on the Parcel; or 
 

• c) the Water Service will be used to supply a Public Park with water for Park 
Purposes.  

 
d)  Add new sub-heading – “Use Fee – Park Use Water Supply” & sections 36-38 and 

the following text: 

• 36. The Owner of every Parcel that is a Public Park connected to the Water 
Service as either one source or the only source of water supply for Park Purposes 
shall pay annually to the Village a water utility fee for Domestic Water as per the 
Water Servicing Agreement and to be evaluated on an annual basis. 
 

• 37. The fee specified in Section 36 shall be due and payable each year on the same 
date that municipal property taxes are due. 

 
• 38. Notwithstanding Section 36, where a Public Park is connected to the Water 

Service for less than one calendar year, the fee shall be prorated as of one month 
after the first day of the month in which the connection permit is issued and is 
payable when the connection permit is issued.  

 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012,  
Amendment Bylaw No. 540, 2019 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 Amendment Bylaw No. 540, 2019 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\5.3 Attach A Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 
Amendment Bylaw No. 540, 2019.docx 
 

2 

 
 e)  Add the following bolded text to Section 75 – “Single Pipe” 

• Where an Owner desires to use a single pipe for both domestic water supply 
and for a fire sprinkler system water supply (or for both Park Purposes and 
for a fire sprinkler system water supply), the Owner shall provide and 
install, at the Owner’s cost, a fire meter approved ULC listed Water Meter 
assembly to measure all flows, to the specifications approved by the 
Superintendent, and in that case, the Superintendent may, at his sole 
discretion, determine if the On-Site Works must be reconstructed and choose 
an acceptable location for the Water Meter or “Tattle Tale” meter. 

 
 f) Add the following bolded text to Section 79 – “Owner Responsibility” 

• It is the responsibility of the Owner to advise the Municipality if a condition 
under Section 78 exists and to take appropriate action to discontinue this 
connection or contact the Superintendent to take necessary action. 

  
 g) Add the following bolded text to Section 80 – “Owner Required to Remedy” 

• Where any piping, fixture, fitting, container or appliance is connected to the 
Waterworks contrary to Section 78 or where the Superintendent determines 
that a condition exists which could result in water, waste water or any 
harmful liquid or substance entering the Waterworks or the Municipality’s 
source of water supply, the Superintendent may give notice to the Owner of 
the Parcel or other responsible person to remedy the condition to the 
satisfaction of the Superintendent within ninety-six (96) hours of such notice, 
or such lesser period of time as may be specified. 

 
 h) Add the following bolded text to Section 83 – “Failure to Test” 

• Where an Owner or a person being provided with Water Service fails to 
deliver the report referred to in section  annually or otherwise as required by 
Section 82, or where a report referred to in Section 82 provides that a Backflow 
Preventer Device is not in proper working condition, upon notice from the 
Superintendent, the Owner or the person being provided with the Water 
Service shall either: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 Amendment Bylaw No. 540, 2019 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\5.3 Attach A Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 
Amendment Bylaw No. 540, 2019.docx 
 

3 

 
 
Read a First Time on  
 
Read a Second Time on  
 
Read a Third Time on  
 
ADOPTED by Council on  
 
 
 
 
   
Neil Belenkie 
Mayor 

 Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 
Amendment Bylaw No. 540, 2019 
 

 
 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2019\2019 07 22\2019 07 22 Request for a Permissive Tax Exemption for the 
Sasamat Outdoor Centre.doc 

  
COUNCIL REPORT 

  
Date: July 22, 2019 
 
From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
Subject: Request for a Permissive Tax Exemption for the Sasamat Outdoor Centre  
 
 
Recommendation 

That staff be directed to prepare a bylaw to provide a Permissive Tax Exemption Bylaw for the 
Sasamat Outdoor Centre, a non-profit organization, for a period of five years.  

Purpose 

To provide Council with information on a request from the Sasamat Outdoor Centre, Association of 
Neighbourhood Houses of BC, for a Permissive Tax Exemption.   

Background 

A request has been received for a Permissive Tax Exemption for the Sasamat Outdoor Centre 
located at 3302 Senkler Road, Belcarra, BC.  Sasamat Outdoor Centre is a non-profit society that 
supports services for participants in Belcarra plus surrounding communities and beyond.   

The Community Charter provides and gives Council latitude for exempting certain land and / or 
improvements from municipal taxation.  Council Policy 176 permits Council to provide a maximum 
of a 10% municipal tax exemption.   

A tax exemption was approved for this property for fiscal 2014 at 10% of the property tax amount, 
which currently means about a $200 loss in tax revenue for the Village.  In order to receive the tax 
exemption, Council must adopt a bylaw by the end of October in the year preceding the applicable 
tax year.  The noted bylaw may be written to provide the exemption for a period from 1 to 10 years. 
Staff recommend an exemption for a 5-year period.   

Based on the submission from the Sasamat Outdoor Centre, Association of Neighborhood Houses 
BC, staff are requesting that Council confirm that they are supportive of providing this exemption 
from fiscal 2020 up to and including 2025.  A minimum of a five-year period saves on 
administrative time to process bylaws and the financial impact is minimal.   
 
 
Attachment: 
a) Application for Permissive Tax Exemption 
 
 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.4



prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment a)

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text









































prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.1



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.2





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.3



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.4



Sincerely, 

Bill Beamish 

TOWN OF GIBSONS 
PO Box 340 

474 South Fletcher Road 

Gibsons BC I VON 1V0 

T 604-886-2274 

F 604-886-9735 

info@gibsons.ca 
www.gibsons.ca 

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR I WILLIAM BEAMISH 

July 16, 2019 0530-60 

Honourable Rob Fleming 

Ministry of Education 

PO Box 9045 Stn Prov Govt 

Victoria BC V8W 9E2 

EDUC.Minister@gov.bc.ca 

Re: Provincial Support for Libraries 

Dear Honourable Rob Fleming, 

At the Regular Council meeting of July 9, 2019, the Town of Gibsons Mayor and Council, by way of 

resolution, supports the City of Victoria's resolutions advocating for the restoration of library funding 

to a level that reflects both inflationary cost increases since 2009 and the value of this system to the 

Province. 

The Town of Gibsons believes public libraries provide crucial information and resource services to the 

citizens in our community, and sustainable funding is required for libraries to run effectively. 

Mayor 

Cc: Premier John Horgan via email: premier@gov.bc.ca  

MLA Nicholas Simons via email: nicholas.simons.MLA@Ieg.bc.ca 

UBCM Member Municipalities via email 

TOWN OF GIBSONS 
"Nature is our most valuable asset" 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.5



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.6





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.7 a)







prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.7 b)










	1. That Council rescind “Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 Amendment Bylaw No. 539, 2019”, which received first, second and third reading on June 10, 2019.
	1. That Council rescind “Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 Amendment Bylaw No. 539, 2019”, which received first, second and third reading on June 10, 2019.
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012
	Amendment Bylaw No. 540, 2019” be read a first, second and third time.
	Amendment Bylaw No. 540, 2019” be read a first, second and third time.
	3.1 2019 07 08  Regular Council Minutes.pdf
	2. Charitable Donation Plan
	2. Charitable Donation Plan
	L. Dysart outlined her report regarding potential for fire sprinkler systems to be installed in all new construction and in major house renovations or additions.
	L. Dysart outlined her report regarding potential for fire sprinkler systems to be installed in all new construction and in major house renovations or additions.
	That the Fire Sprinkler Systems report dated July 8, 2019 be received for information.
	That the Fire Sprinkler Systems report dated July 8, 2019 be received for information.
	CARRIED
	CARRIED
	Certified Correct:
	Certified Correct:

	5.1 2019 07 22 TUP for ELC Council Report.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Attach 3 Bylaw 541, 2019 - Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011  Amendment Bylaw No. 541, 2019.pdf
	An amendment bylaw to enable Temporary Use Permits in the Village of Belcarra.
	An amendment bylaw to enable Temporary Use Permits in the Village of Belcarra.
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows:
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows:
	1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw No. 541, 2019”
	1. That this bylaw be cited for all purposes as the “Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011, Amendment Bylaw No. 541, 2019”
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011” be amended:
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 435, 2011” be amended:
	a) By adding after Section 3.1.2 (b) (ii) the following:
	a) By adding after Section 3.1.2 (b) (ii) the following:
	iii)  Council may issue a Temporary Use Permit (TUP) pursuant to OCP Schedule E.
	iii)  Council may issue a Temporary Use Permit (TUP) pursuant to OCP Schedule E.
	and
	and
	b) By adding Schedule E to the Official Community Plan as follows:
	b) By adding Schedule E to the Official Community Plan as follows:


	5.2 2019 07 22 - 2019 Water Servicing Agreement - Metro Parks.pdf
	1.0 Connection & Connection Fee
	1.0 Connection & Connection Fee
	1.1 The Regional District agrees to pay to the Village, in exchange for the Village permitting the Lands to connect to the Water System, the following amounts, for a collective connection fee of $42,445.00:
	1.1 The Regional District agrees to pay to the Village, in exchange for the Village permitting the Lands to connect to the Water System, the following amounts, for a collective connection fee of $42,445.00:
	(a) the Capital Cost of $34,245.00, which amount represents the Village calculation of an appropriate share of the costs of constructing the Water System given the additional use of water by the Regional District contemplated by this Agreement; and
	(a) the Capital Cost of $34,245.00, which amount represents the Village calculation of an appropriate share of the costs of constructing the Water System given the additional use of water by the Regional District contemplated by this Agreement; and
	(b) an amount equal to $8,200.00, as a contribution towards legal fees or consultant fees incurred by the Village in association with the Regional District’s request to connect to the Water System and the preparation of this Agreement
	(b) an amount equal to $8,200.00, as a contribution towards legal fees or consultant fees incurred by the Village in association with the Regional District’s request to connect to the Water System and the preparation of this Agreement
	(collectively the “Fee”).
	(collectively the “Fee”).


	1.2 Following payment of the Fee, the Regional District shall apply to connect the Lands to the Water System and shall comply with all connection requirements under the Waterworks Bylaw and any additional requirements of the Village, including payment...
	1.2 Following payment of the Fee, the Regional District shall apply to connect the Lands to the Water System and shall comply with all connection requirements under the Waterworks Bylaw and any additional requirements of the Village, including payment...
	1.3 The Village agrees that if for whatever reason the Regional District’s application to connect the Lands to the Water System under the Waterworks Bylaw is refused, the Village shall return the Fee to the Regional District, and the parties shall wor...
	1.3 The Village agrees that if for whatever reason the Regional District’s application to connect the Lands to the Water System under the Waterworks Bylaw is refused, the Village shall return the Fee to the Regional District, and the parties shall wor...
	1.4 Notwithstanding Section 1.1, the Regional District and Village obligations under this Agreement are subject to the satisfaction of the following conditions precedent:
	1.4 Notwithstanding Section 1.1, the Regional District and Village obligations under this Agreement are subject to the satisfaction of the following conditions precedent:
	(a) On or before September 9, 2019 the Village Council amending the Waterworks Bylaw to permit use of water for public park purposes, as described in Recital D to this Agreement; and
	(a) On or before September 9, 2019 the Village Council amending the Waterworks Bylaw to permit use of water for public park purposes, as described in Recital D to this Agreement; and
	(a) On or before September 9, 2019 the Village Council amending the Waterworks Bylaw to permit use of water for public park purposes, as described in Recital D to this Agreement; and
	(b)  The connection fee specified in the Village’s Fees and Charges Bylaw for a parks purposes connection being set at $750 at the time the Regional District applies to connect to the Water System.
	(b)  The connection fee specified in the Village’s Fees and Charges Bylaw for a parks purposes connection being set at $750 at the time the Regional District applies to connect to the Water System.

	1.5 For the purposes of section 1.3, “park purposes” means use of water for bathroom, concession, picnicking, visitor consumption, and other uses of water consistent with use of land as a public park.
	1.5 For the purposes of section 1.3, “park purposes” means use of water for bathroom, concession, picnicking, visitor consumption, and other uses of water consistent with use of land as a public park.
	1.6 The Regional District acknowledges and agrees that:
	1.6 The Regional District acknowledges and agrees that:
	(a) the Regional District shall only be permitted to connect to the Water System in accordance with the Waterworks Bylaw, including by paying all fees and charges required to be paid under the Waterworks Bylaw for connection to the Water System (which...
	(a) the Regional District shall only be permitted to connect to the Water System in accordance with the Waterworks Bylaw, including by paying all fees and charges required to be paid under the Waterworks Bylaw for connection to the Water System (which...
	(b) the Regional District acquires no special or extraordinary rights with respect to the Water System by virtue of this Agreement or payment of the Fee;
	(b) the Regional District acquires no special or extraordinary rights with respect to the Water System by virtue of this Agreement or payment of the Fee;


	2.0 Further Agreements
	2.0 Further Agreements
	2.1 The Regional District and the Village shall execute such further agreements, authorities and assurances as may be necessary to give effect to their covenants herein.
	2.1 The Regional District and the Village shall execute such further agreements, authorities and assurances as may be necessary to give effect to their covenants herein.

	3.0 Delivery of Notices
	3.0 Delivery of Notices
	3.1 All notices and other communications with respect to this Agreement shall be given or made in writing and may be delivered personally or sent by pre-paid registered mail as follows:
	3.1 All notices and other communications with respect to this Agreement shall be given or made in writing and may be delivered personally or sent by pre-paid registered mail as follows:
	(a) To the Village:
	(a) To the Village:
	(b) To the Regional District:
	(b) To the Regional District:

	3.2 The date of receipt of any such notice shall be deemed to be:
	3.2 The date of receipt of any such notice shall be deemed to be:
	(a) the date of delivery, if delivered personally; or
	(a) the date of delivery, if delivered personally; or
	(b) five days after the date of mailing in Canada, if mailed; or
	(b) five days after the date of mailing in Canada, if mailed; or


	4.0 No Effect on Powers
	4.0 No Effect on Powers
	4.1 This Agreement does not:
	4.1 This Agreement does not:
	(a) affect or limit the discretion, rights, duties or powers of the Village under any common law or statute, bylaw or other enactment, nor does it create, or is the parties’ intention to create, any implied obligations regarding such discretion, right...
	(a) affect or limit the discretion, rights, duties or powers of the Village under any common law or statute, bylaw or other enactment, nor does it create, or is the parties’ intention to create, any implied obligations regarding such discretion, right...
	(b) relieve the Regional District from complying with any common law or any statute, bylaw or other enactment.
	(b) relieve the Regional District from complying with any common law or any statute, bylaw or other enactment.


	5.0 Agreement Binding
	5.0 Agreement Binding
	5.1 This Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.
	5.1 This Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

	6.0 Amendment
	6.0 Amendment
	6.1 No amendment, termination or variation of the terms, conditions, warranties, covenants, agreements and undertakings set out herein shall be of any force or effect unless the same is reduced to writing duly executed by all parties hereto in the sam...
	6.1 No amendment, termination or variation of the terms, conditions, warranties, covenants, agreements and undertakings set out herein shall be of any force or effect unless the same is reduced to writing duly executed by all parties hereto in the sam...

	7.0 Waiver
	7.0 Waiver
	7.1 An alleged waiver of any breach of this Agreement is effective only if it is an express waiver in writing of that breach. A waiver of a breach of this Agreement does not operate as a waiver of any other breach of this Agreement.
	7.1 An alleged waiver of any breach of this Agreement is effective only if it is an express waiver in writing of that breach. A waiver of a breach of this Agreement does not operate as a waiver of any other breach of this Agreement.

	8.0 Assignment
	8.0 Assignment
	8.1 This Agreement and any right or benefit hereunder may not be assigned by any party without the prior express written consent of the other party.
	8.1 This Agreement and any right or benefit hereunder may not be assigned by any party without the prior express written consent of the other party.

	9.0 Severability
	9.0 Severability
	9.1 If any part of this Agreement is for any reason held to be invalid by a decision of a court with the jurisdiction to do so, the invalid portion is to be considered severed from the rest of this Agreement and the decision that it is invalid shall n...
	9.1 If any part of this Agreement is for any reason held to be invalid by a decision of a court with the jurisdiction to do so, the invalid portion is to be considered severed from the rest of this Agreement and the decision that it is invalid shall n...
	9.1 If any part of this Agreement is for any reason held to be invalid by a decision of a court with the jurisdiction to do so, the invalid portion is to be considered severed from the rest of this Agreement and the decision that it is invalid shall n...

	10.0 Interpretation
	10.0 Interpretation
	10.1 In this Agreement:
	10.1 In this Agreement:
	(a) reference to the singular includes a reference to the plural, and vice versa, unless the context requires otherwise;
	(a) reference to the singular includes a reference to the plural, and vice versa, unless the context requires otherwise;
	(b) article and section headings have been inserted for ease of reference only and are not to be used in interpreting this agreement;
	(b) article and section headings have been inserted for ease of reference only and are not to be used in interpreting this agreement;
	(c) the term “enactment” has the meaning given to it under the Interpretation Act (British Columbia) on the reference date of this Agreement;
	(c) the term “enactment” has the meaning given to it under the Interpretation Act (British Columbia) on the reference date of this Agreement;
	(d) reference to any enactment includes any regulations, orders or directives made under the authority of that enactment;
	(d) reference to any enactment includes any regulations, orders or directives made under the authority of that enactment;
	(e) reference to any enactment is a reference to that enactment as consolidated, revised, amended, re-enacted or replaced from time to time, unless otherwise expressly provided;
	(e) reference to any enactment is a reference to that enactment as consolidated, revised, amended, re-enacted or replaced from time to time, unless otherwise expressly provided;
	(f) reference to a particular numbered section, or to a particular lettered schedule, is, unless otherwise expressly provided, a reference to the correspondingly numbered section or lettered schedule of this Agreement;
	(f) reference to a particular numbered section, or to a particular lettered schedule, is, unless otherwise expressly provided, a reference to the correspondingly numbered section or lettered schedule of this Agreement;
	(g) all Schedules to this Agreement form an integral part of this Agreement;
	(g) all Schedules to this Agreement form an integral part of this Agreement;
	(h) subject to the Force Majeure Clause, time is of the essence; and
	(h) subject to the Force Majeure Clause, time is of the essence; and
	(i) where the word "including" is followed by a list, the contents of the list are not intended to limit or otherwise affect the generality of the expression preceding the word "including".
	(i) where the word "including" is followed by a list, the contents of the list are not intended to limit or otherwise affect the generality of the expression preceding the word "including".


	11.0 Counterparts
	11.0 Counterparts
	11.1 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and delivered by e-mail, each of which shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument, provided that any par...
	11.1 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and delivered by e-mail, each of which shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument, provided that any par...


	5.3 Council Report - Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 Amendment Bylaw No. 540, 2019.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: July 22, 2019
	Date: July 22, 2019
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	Subject: Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012
	Subject: Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012
	Amendment Bylaw No. 540, 2019
	Amendment Bylaw No. 540, 2019
	Recommendation
	Recommendation
	1. That Council rescind “Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 Amendment Bylaw No. 539, 2019”, which received first, second and third reading on June 10, 2019.
	1. That Council rescind “Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 Amendment Bylaw No. 539, 2019”, which received first, second and third reading on June 10, 2019.
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 Amendment Bylaw No. 540, 2019” be read a first, second and third time.
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 Amendment Bylaw No. 540, 2019” be read a first, second and third time.
	Purpose
	Purpose
	To amend the “Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012” to include additional definitions, new sections, and revisions to existing sections to reflect Metro Vancouver’s waterworks connection.  Background
	To amend the “Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012” to include additional definitions, new sections, and revisions to existing sections to reflect Metro Vancouver’s waterworks connection.  Background
	On April 24, 2019, Council approved the request from Metro Vancouver to connect to the Village of Belcarra Water System and the associated connection and water utility fees.
	On April 24, 2019, Council approved the request from Metro Vancouver to connect to the Village of Belcarra Water System and the associated connection and water utility fees.
	Metro Vancouver is seeking permission to connect two parcels of land (PID 011-554-541 & PID 018-353-347) to the waterworks located within the Village Local Service Area (LSA), as defined in the ‘Bylaw No. 413, 2008’ (part of “Waterworks Bylaw No. 456,...
	Metro Vancouver is seeking permission to connect two parcels of land (PID 011-554-541 & PID 018-353-347) to the waterworks located within the Village Local Service Area (LSA), as defined in the ‘Bylaw No. 413, 2008’ (part of “Waterworks Bylaw No. 456,...
	On June 10, 2019, the “Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 Amendment Bylaw        No. 539, 2019” and accompany report was presented to Council and the bylaw received first, second, and third reading. Since then, Metro Vancouver has prov...
	On June 10, 2019, the “Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 Amendment Bylaw        No. 539, 2019” and accompany report was presented to Council and the bylaw received first, second, and third reading. Since then, Metro Vancouver has prov...
	The “Village of Belcarra Water Servicing Agreement with the Metro Vancouver Regional District” sets out the terms and conditions of the waterworks connection between the Village of Belcarra and Metro Vancouver.
	The “Village of Belcarra Water Servicing Agreement with the Metro Vancouver Regional District” sets out the terms and conditions of the waterworks connection between the Village of Belcarra and Metro Vancouver.
	Attachments:
	Attachments:
	A. Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 Amendment Bylaw No. 540, 2019
	A. Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 Amendment Bylaw No. 540, 2019
	5.3 Attach A Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 Amendment Bylaw No. 540, 2019.pdf
	An amendment bylaw to add additional definitions, new sections, and revisions to existing sections to reflect Metro Vancouver’s waterworks connection.
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra Council enacts as follows:
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012,” be amended:
	a) By adding the following text to Section 2 – “Definitions”:
	 Park Purposes means use of water for sprinkling bathroom, concession, picnicking, visitor consumption, and other uses consistent with use of land as a Public Park.
	 Public Park means land owned or occupied by a municipality or regional district and used as a public park.
	b) Adding the following bolded text to Section 16 – “Extent of Connection”:
	 b) the Water Service will be used only for the supply of water for an interior fire sprinkler system on the Parcel; or
	 c) the Water Service will be used to supply a Public Park with water for Park Purposes.
	d)  Add new sub-heading – “Use Fee – Park Use Water Supply” & sections 36-38 and the following text:
	 36. The Owner of every Parcel that is a Public Park connected to the Water Service as either one source or the only source of water supply for Park Purposes shall pay annually to the Village a water utility fee for Domestic Water as per the Water Se...
	 37. The fee specified in Section 36 shall be due and payable each year on the same date that municipal property taxes are due.
	 38. Notwithstanding Section 36, where a Public Park is connected to the Water Service for less than one calendar year, the fee shall be prorated as of one month after the first day of the month in which the connection permit is issued and is payable...
	e)  Add the following bolded text to Section 75 – “Single Pipe”
	f) Add the following bolded text to Section 79 – “Owner Responsibility”
	g) Add the following bolded text to Section 80 – “Owner Required to Remedy”
	h) Add the following bolded text to Section 83 – “Failure to Test”
	Read a First Time on
	Read a Second Time on
	Read a Third Time on
	ADOPTED by Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 Amendment Bylaw No. 540, 2019


	5.4 2019 07 22 Request for a Permissive Tax Exemption for the Sasamat Outdoor Centre.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: July 22, 2019
	Date: July 22, 2019
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	Subject: Request for a Permissive Tax Exemption for the Sasamat Outdoor Centre
	Subject: Request for a Permissive Tax Exemption for the Sasamat Outdoor Centre
	Recommendation
	Recommendation
	Purpose
	Purpose
	To provide Council with information on a request from the Sasamat Outdoor Centre, Association of Neighbourhood Houses of BC, for a Permissive Tax Exemption.
	To provide Council with information on a request from the Sasamat Outdoor Centre, Association of Neighbourhood Houses of BC, for a Permissive Tax Exemption.
	Background
	Background
	A request has been received for a Permissive Tax Exemption for the Sasamat Outdoor Centre located at 3302 Senkler Road, Belcarra, BC.  Sasamat Outdoor Centre is a non-profit society that supports services for participants in Belcarra plus surrounding ...
	A request has been received for a Permissive Tax Exemption for the Sasamat Outdoor Centre located at 3302 Senkler Road, Belcarra, BC.  Sasamat Outdoor Centre is a non-profit society that supports services for participants in Belcarra plus surrounding ...
	The Community Charter provides and gives Council latitude for exempting certain land and / or improvements from municipal taxation.  Council Policy 176 permits Council to provide a maximum of a 10% municipal tax exemption.
	The Community Charter provides and gives Council latitude for exempting certain land and / or improvements from municipal taxation.  Council Policy 176 permits Council to provide a maximum of a 10% municipal tax exemption.
	A tax exemption was approved for this property for fiscal 2014 at 10% of the property tax amount, which currently means about a $200 loss in tax revenue for the Village.  In order to receive the tax exemption, Council must adopt a bylaw by the end of ...
	A tax exemption was approved for this property for fiscal 2014 at 10% of the property tax amount, which currently means about a $200 loss in tax revenue for the Village.  In order to receive the tax exemption, Council must adopt a bylaw by the end of ...
	Based on the submission from the Sasamat Outdoor Centre, Association of Neighborhood Houses BC, staff are requesting that Council confirm that they are supportive of providing this exemption from fiscal 2020 up to and including 2025.  A minimum of a f...
	Based on the submission from the Sasamat Outdoor Centre, Association of Neighborhood Houses BC, staff are requesting that Council confirm that they are supportive of providing this exemption from fiscal 2020 up to and including 2025.  A minimum of a f...
	Attachment:
	Attachment:
	a) Application for Permissive Tax Exemption
	a) Application for Permissive Tax Exemption

	8.5 2019-07-16 Ltr of Support to Increase Provincial Funding for Libraries -.._.pdf
	Page 1

	5.2 2019 07 22 - 2019 Water Servicing Agreement - Metro Parks.pdf
	1.0 Connection & Connection Fee
	1.0 Connection & Connection Fee
	1.1 The Regional District agrees to pay to the Village, in exchange for the Village permitting the Lands to connect to the Water System, the following amounts, for a collective connection fee of $42,445.00:
	1.1 The Regional District agrees to pay to the Village, in exchange for the Village permitting the Lands to connect to the Water System, the following amounts, for a collective connection fee of $42,445.00:
	(a) the Capital Cost of $34,245.00, which amount represents the Village calculation of an appropriate share of the costs of constructing the Water System given the additional use of water by the Regional District contemplated by this Agreement; and
	(a) the Capital Cost of $34,245.00, which amount represents the Village calculation of an appropriate share of the costs of constructing the Water System given the additional use of water by the Regional District contemplated by this Agreement; and
	(b) an amount equal to $8,200.00, as a contribution towards legal fees or consultant fees incurred by the Village in association with the Regional District’s request to connect to the Water System and the preparation of this Agreement
	(b) an amount equal to $8,200.00, as a contribution towards legal fees or consultant fees incurred by the Village in association with the Regional District’s request to connect to the Water System and the preparation of this Agreement
	(collectively the “Fee”).
	(collectively the “Fee”).


	1.2 Following payment of the Fee, the Regional District shall apply to connect the Lands to the Water System and shall comply with all connection requirements under the Waterworks Bylaw and any additional requirements of the Village, including payment...
	1.2 Following payment of the Fee, the Regional District shall apply to connect the Lands to the Water System and shall comply with all connection requirements under the Waterworks Bylaw and any additional requirements of the Village, including payment...
	1.3 The Village agrees that if for whatever reason the Regional District’s application to connect the Lands to the Water System under the Waterworks Bylaw is refused, the Village shall return the Fee to the Regional District, and the parties shall wor...
	1.3 The Village agrees that if for whatever reason the Regional District’s application to connect the Lands to the Water System under the Waterworks Bylaw is refused, the Village shall return the Fee to the Regional District, and the parties shall wor...
	1.4 Notwithstanding Section 1.1, the Regional District and Village obligations under this Agreement are subject to the satisfaction of the following conditions precedent:
	1.4 Notwithstanding Section 1.1, the Regional District and Village obligations under this Agreement are subject to the satisfaction of the following conditions precedent:
	1.4 Notwithstanding Section 1.1, the Regional District and Village obligations under this Agreement are subject to the satisfaction of the following conditions precedent:
	(a) On or before September 9, 2019 the Village Council amending the Waterworks Bylaw to permit use of water for public park purposes, as described in Recital D to this Agreement; and
	(a) On or before September 9, 2019 the Village Council amending the Waterworks Bylaw to permit use of water for public park purposes, as described in Recital D to this Agreement; and
	(b)  The connection fee specified in the Village’s Fees and Charges Bylaw for a parks purposes connection being set at $750 at the time the Regional District applies to connect to the Water System.
	(b)  The connection fee specified in the Village’s Fees and Charges Bylaw for a parks purposes connection being set at $750 at the time the Regional District applies to connect to the Water System.

	1.5 For the purposes of section 1.3, “park purposes” means use of water for bathroom, concession, picnicking, visitor consumption, and other uses of water consistent with use of land as a public park.
	1.5 For the purposes of section 1.3, “park purposes” means use of water for bathroom, concession, picnicking, visitor consumption, and other uses of water consistent with use of land as a public park.
	1.6 The Regional District acknowledges and agrees that:
	1.6 The Regional District acknowledges and agrees that:
	(a) the Regional District shall only be permitted to connect to the Water System in accordance with the Waterworks Bylaw, including by paying all fees and charges required to be paid under the Waterworks Bylaw for connection to the Water System (which...
	(a) the Regional District shall only be permitted to connect to the Water System in accordance with the Waterworks Bylaw, including by paying all fees and charges required to be paid under the Waterworks Bylaw for connection to the Water System (which...
	(b) the Regional District acquires no special or extraordinary rights with respect to the Water System by virtue of this Agreement or payment of the Fee;
	(b) the Regional District acquires no special or extraordinary rights with respect to the Water System by virtue of this Agreement or payment of the Fee;


	2.0 Further Agreements
	2.0 Further Agreements
	2.1 The Regional District and the Village shall execute such further agreements, authorities and assurances as may be necessary to give effect to their covenants herein.
	2.1 The Regional District and the Village shall execute such further agreements, authorities and assurances as may be necessary to give effect to their covenants herein.

	3.0 Delivery of Notices
	3.0 Delivery of Notices
	3.1 All notices and other communications with respect to this Agreement shall be given or made in writing and may be delivered personally or sent by pre-paid registered mail as follows:
	3.1 All notices and other communications with respect to this Agreement shall be given or made in writing and may be delivered personally or sent by pre-paid registered mail as follows:
	(a) To the Village:
	(a) To the Village:
	(b) To the Regional District:
	(b) To the Regional District:

	3.2 The date of receipt of any such notice shall be deemed to be:
	3.2 The date of receipt of any such notice shall be deemed to be:
	(a) the date of delivery, if delivered personally; or
	(a) the date of delivery, if delivered personally; or
	(b) five days after the date of mailing in Canada, if mailed; or
	(b) five days after the date of mailing in Canada, if mailed; or


	4.0 No Effect on Powers
	4.0 No Effect on Powers
	4.1 This Agreement does not:
	4.1 This Agreement does not:
	(a) affect or limit the discretion, rights, duties or powers of the Village under any common law or statute, bylaw or other enactment, nor does it create, or is the parties’ intention to create, any implied obligations regarding such discretion, right...
	(a) affect or limit the discretion, rights, duties or powers of the Village under any common law or statute, bylaw or other enactment, nor does it create, or is the parties’ intention to create, any implied obligations regarding such discretion, right...
	(b) relieve the Regional District from complying with any common law or any statute, bylaw or other enactment.
	(b) relieve the Regional District from complying with any common law or any statute, bylaw or other enactment.


	5.0 Agreement Binding
	5.0 Agreement Binding
	5.1 This Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.
	5.1 This Agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

	6.0 Amendment
	6.0 Amendment
	6.1 No amendment, termination or variation of the terms, conditions, warranties, covenants, agreements and undertakings set out herein shall be of any force or effect unless the same is reduced to writing duly executed by all parties hereto in the sam...
	6.1 No amendment, termination or variation of the terms, conditions, warranties, covenants, agreements and undertakings set out herein shall be of any force or effect unless the same is reduced to writing duly executed by all parties hereto in the sam...

	7.0 Waiver
	7.0 Waiver
	7.1 An alleged waiver of any breach of this Agreement is effective only if it is an express waiver in writing of that breach. A waiver of a breach of this Agreement does not operate as a waiver of any other breach of this Agreement.
	7.1 An alleged waiver of any breach of this Agreement is effective only if it is an express waiver in writing of that breach. A waiver of a breach of this Agreement does not operate as a waiver of any other breach of this Agreement.

	8.0 Assignment
	8.0 Assignment
	8.1 This Agreement and any right or benefit hereunder may not be assigned by any party without the prior express written consent of the other party.
	8.1 This Agreement and any right or benefit hereunder may not be assigned by any party without the prior express written consent of the other party.

	9.0 Severability
	9.0 Severability
	9.0 Severability
	9.1 If any part of this Agreement is for any reason held to be invalid by a decision of a court with the jurisdiction to do so, the invalid portion is to be considered severed from the rest of this Agreement and the decision that it is invalid shall n...
	9.1 If any part of this Agreement is for any reason held to be invalid by a decision of a court with the jurisdiction to do so, the invalid portion is to be considered severed from the rest of this Agreement and the decision that it is invalid shall n...

	10.0 Interpretation
	10.0 Interpretation
	10.1 In this Agreement:
	10.1 In this Agreement:
	(a) reference to the singular includes a reference to the plural, and vice versa, unless the context requires otherwise;
	(a) reference to the singular includes a reference to the plural, and vice versa, unless the context requires otherwise;
	(b) article and section headings have been inserted for ease of reference only and are not to be used in interpreting this agreement;
	(b) article and section headings have been inserted for ease of reference only and are not to be used in interpreting this agreement;
	(c) the term “enactment” has the meaning given to it under the Interpretation Act (British Columbia) on the reference date of this Agreement;
	(c) the term “enactment” has the meaning given to it under the Interpretation Act (British Columbia) on the reference date of this Agreement;
	(d) reference to any enactment includes any regulations, orders or directives made under the authority of that enactment;
	(d) reference to any enactment includes any regulations, orders or directives made under the authority of that enactment;
	(e) reference to any enactment is a reference to that enactment as consolidated, revised, amended, re-enacted or replaced from time to time, unless otherwise expressly provided;
	(e) reference to any enactment is a reference to that enactment as consolidated, revised, amended, re-enacted or replaced from time to time, unless otherwise expressly provided;
	(f) reference to a particular numbered section, or to a particular lettered schedule, is, unless otherwise expressly provided, a reference to the correspondingly numbered section or lettered schedule of this Agreement;
	(f) reference to a particular numbered section, or to a particular lettered schedule, is, unless otherwise expressly provided, a reference to the correspondingly numbered section or lettered schedule of this Agreement;
	(g) all Schedules to this Agreement form an integral part of this Agreement;
	(g) all Schedules to this Agreement form an integral part of this Agreement;
	(h) subject to the Force Majeure Clause, time is of the essence; and
	(h) subject to the Force Majeure Clause, time is of the essence; and
	(i) where the word "including" is followed by a list, the contents of the list are not intended to limit or otherwise affect the generality of the expression preceding the word "including".
	(i) where the word "including" is followed by a list, the contents of the list are not intended to limit or otherwise affect the generality of the expression preceding the word "including".


	11.0 Counterparts
	11.0 Counterparts
	11.1 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and delivered by e-mail, each of which shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument, provided that any par...
	11.1 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and delivered by e-mail, each of which shall be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument, provided that any par...


	5.4 2019 07 22 Request for a Permissive Tax Exemption for the Sasamat Outdoor Centre.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: July 22, 2019
	Date: July 22, 2019
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	Subject: Request for a Permissive Tax Exemption for the Sasamat Outdoor Centre
	Subject: Request for a Permissive Tax Exemption for the Sasamat Outdoor Centre
	Recommendation
	Recommendation
	Purpose
	Purpose
	To provide Council with information on a request from the Sasamat Outdoor Centre, Association of Neighbourhood Houses of BC, for a Permissive Tax Exemption.
	To provide Council with information on a request from the Sasamat Outdoor Centre, Association of Neighbourhood Houses of BC, for a Permissive Tax Exemption.
	Background
	Background
	A request has been received for a Permissive Tax Exemption for the Sasamat Outdoor Centre located at 3302 Senkler Road, Belcarra, BC.  Sasamat Outdoor Centre is a non-profit society that supports services for participants in Belcarra plus surrounding ...
	A request has been received for a Permissive Tax Exemption for the Sasamat Outdoor Centre located at 3302 Senkler Road, Belcarra, BC.  Sasamat Outdoor Centre is a non-profit society that supports services for participants in Belcarra plus surrounding ...
	The Community Charter provides and gives Council latitude for exempting certain land and / or improvements from municipal taxation.  Council Policy 176 permits Council to provide a maximum of a 10% municipal tax exemption.
	The Community Charter provides and gives Council latitude for exempting certain land and / or improvements from municipal taxation.  Council Policy 176 permits Council to provide a maximum of a 10% municipal tax exemption.
	A tax exemption was approved for this property for fiscal 2014 at 10% of the property tax amount, which currently means about a $200 loss in tax revenue for the Village.  In order to receive the tax exemption, Council must adopt a bylaw by the end of ...
	A tax exemption was approved for this property for fiscal 2014 at 10% of the property tax amount, which currently means about a $200 loss in tax revenue for the Village.  In order to receive the tax exemption, Council must adopt a bylaw by the end of ...
	Based on the submission from the Sasamat Outdoor Centre, Association of Neighborhood Houses BC, staff are requesting that Council confirm that they are supportive of providing this exemption from fiscal 2020 up to and including 2025.  A minimum of a f...
	Based on the submission from the Sasamat Outdoor Centre, Association of Neighborhood Houses BC, staff are requesting that Council confirm that they are supportive of providing this exemption from fiscal 2020 up to and including 2025.  A minimum of a f...
	Attachment:
	Attachment:
	a) Application for Permissive Tax Exemption
	a) Application for Permissive Tax Exemption
	2019 07 22 Request for a Permissive Tax Exemption for the Sasamat Outdoor Centre.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: July 22, 2019
	Date: July 22, 2019
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	Subject: Request for a Permissive Tax Exemption for the Sasamat Outdoor Centre
	Subject: Request for a Permissive Tax Exemption for the Sasamat Outdoor Centre
	Recommendation
	Recommendation
	Purpose
	Purpose
	To provide Council with information on a request from the Sasamat Outdoor Centre, Association of Neighbourhood Houses of BC, for a Permissive Tax Exemption.
	To provide Council with information on a request from the Sasamat Outdoor Centre, Association of Neighbourhood Houses of BC, for a Permissive Tax Exemption.
	Background
	Background
	A request has been received for a Permissive Tax Exemption for the Sasamat Outdoor Centre located at 3302 Senkler Road, Belcarra, BC.  Sasamat Outdoor Centre is a non-profit society that supports services for participants in Belcarra plus surrounding ...
	A request has been received for a Permissive Tax Exemption for the Sasamat Outdoor Centre located at 3302 Senkler Road, Belcarra, BC.  Sasamat Outdoor Centre is a non-profit society that supports services for participants in Belcarra plus surrounding ...
	The Community Charter provides and gives Council latitude for exempting certain land and / or improvements from municipal taxation.  Council Policy 176 permits Council to provide a maximum of a 10% municipal tax exemption.
	The Community Charter provides and gives Council latitude for exempting certain land and / or improvements from municipal taxation.  Council Policy 176 permits Council to provide a maximum of a 10% municipal tax exemption.
	A tax exemption was approved for this property for fiscal 2014 at 10% of the property tax amount, which currently means about a $200 loss in tax revenue for the Village.  In order to receive the tax exemption, Council must adopt a bylaw by the end of ...
	A tax exemption was approved for this property for fiscal 2014 at 10% of the property tax amount, which currently means about a $200 loss in tax revenue for the Village.  In order to receive the tax exemption, Council must adopt a bylaw by the end of ...
	Based on the submission from the Sasamat Outdoor Centre, Association of Neighborhood Houses BC, staff are requesting that Council confirm that they are supportive of providing this exemption from fiscal 2020 up to and including 2025.  A minimum of a f...
	Based on the submission from the Sasamat Outdoor Centre, Association of Neighborhood Houses BC, staff are requesting that Council confirm that they are supportive of providing this exemption from fiscal 2020 up to and including 2025.  A minimum of a f...
	Attachment:
	Attachment:
	a) Application for Permissive Tax Exemption
	a) Application for Permissive Tax Exemption


	07 22 2019  Regular Council Agenda.pdf
	1. That Council rescind “Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 Amendment Bylaw No. 539, 2019”, which received first, second and third reading on June 10, 2019.
	1. That Council rescind “Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012 Amendment Bylaw No. 539, 2019”, which received first, second and third reading on June 10, 2019.
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Waterworks Bylaw No. 456, 2012
	Amendment Bylaw No. 540, 2019” be read a first, second and third time.
	Amendment Bylaw No. 540, 2019” be read a first, second and third time.

	2019 07 22 TUP for ELC Council Report.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	COUNCIL REPORT




